

Cabinet

MINUTES of the OPEN section of the Cabinet held on Tuesday 12 February 2013 at 4.00 pm at the Council Offices, 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2QH

PRESENT:	Councillor Peter John (Chair)
	Councillor Ian Wingfield
	Councillor Fiona Colley
	Councillor Dora Dixon-Fyle
	Councillor Barrie Hargrove
	Councillor Claire Hickson
	Councillor Richard Livingstone
	Councillor Catherine McDonald
	Councillor Veronica Ward

1. APOLOGIES

All members were present.

2. NOTIFICATION OF ANY ITEMS OF BUSINESS WHICH THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT

The chair gave notice that the following item would be considered for reasons of urgency, to be specified in the relevant minute:

Item 9 – Report from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee: Policy and Resources 2013/14 to 2015/16.

3. NOTICE OF INTENTION TO CONDUCT BUSINESS IN A CLOSED MEETING, AND ANY REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED

No closed items were scheduled for consideration at this meeting.

4. DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS

There were no disclosures of interests or dispensations.

1

Cabinet - Tuesday 12 February 2013

5. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (15 MINUTES)

There were no public questions.

6. MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the open minutes of the meeting held on 29 January 2013 be approved as a correct record and signed by the chair.

7. DEPUTATION REQUESTS

There were no deputation requests.

8. POLICY AND RESOURCES 2013/14 TO 2015/16

This report was considered in conjunction with the report from the overview and scrutiny committee (see item 9). Councillor Catherine Bowman, chair of the overview and scrutiny committee presented the committee's recommendations.

- 1. That it be noted that the autumn statement was published on 5 December 2012 with details of the provisional settlement for local government for 2013/14 and 2014/15 received by the council on 20 December 2012.
- 2. That the analysis of the implications for the council of the autumn statement and the provisional settlement and that the final settlement is not now due until 13 February 2013 be noted.
- 3. That the new funding arrangements for local government and particularly the arrangements for the localisation of business rates and the risks and opportunities that this creates for the council be noted.
- 4. That the response to the provisional statement made to the Department for Communities & Local Government (DCLG) by the cabinet member for finance, resources and community safety, including specific references to the timing of the release of the settlement and related information be noted.
- 5. That the government has announced a spending review for spring 2013 and the potential for further changes to the 2014/15 provisional settlement be noted.
- 6. That the loss to the council of early intervention grant (EIG) of £6.1m in 2013/14 and a further provisional loss of £918,000 in 2014/15 be noted.
- 7. That the 2013/14 budget proposals contained within the report to achieve a balanced budget for consideration by cabinet with particular reference to the notional 2013/14

budget approved by council assembly in February 2011 be noted.

- 8. That it be noted that the balanced budget for 2013/14 for recommendation to council assembly on 27 February 2013, includes:
 - the intention to freeze council tax at current levels and to accept the government's freeze grant arising from this decision
 - the commitment to new growth and commitments of £11.8m per annum, including new commitments to support welfare provision of approximately £3.5m, in addition to the creation of a welfare hardship fund (as set out in paragraph 9 of the report)
 - the target to save approximately £24.9m per annum arising from efficiencies, income generation and other savings
 - the provision of contributions from council balances of £6.7m in consideration of the need to make best use of these balances during a period of significant reductions in government funding
 - the inclusion of ring fenced public health funding consistent with the announcement by DCLG for the council and it be noted that this function will be included within the council budget statements moving forward
 - the transfer from the Department of Works and Pensions of Social Grant funding for small grants, crisis loans and administration and the intention to allocate this grant in full to support a council scheme that will be developed to support the most vulnerable residents in Southwark.
- 9. That the setting aside from balances and reserves the specific sum of £800,000 in 2013/14 created by the proceeds generated as a consequence of council tax reforms approved by council assembly for the purposes of a welfare hardship fund be noted.
- 10. That the strategic director of finance and corporate services and strategic director of housing and community services make recommendations on how the welfare hardship fund may be managed and administered to target the most vulnerable residents and groups in Southwark.
- 11. That the progress report for both the youth and community restoration funds be noted and the commitment to provide resources for the youth fund for a further three years to 2016/17 be confirmed. That officers prepare a further report for cabinet on how the youth fund can be best used over the extended period to further develop opportunities for improved economic, employment and education success for Southwark's young people and especially the need to build on the successes of the scheme to date (particularly the scholarship scheme) and all other relevant strategic considerations.
- 12. That the strategic director of finance and corporate services set aside provision from earmarked reserves of up to £1m for the business support fund to be allocated over a period of up to three years and the director of corporate strategy be asked to draw

up appropriate criteria for the fund.

- 13. That the provisional settlement for 2014/15 be noted and that the strategic director of finance and corporate services prepare detailed budget options for consideration by cabinet in the spring of 2013 for wider consultation with residents and other stakeholders.
- 14. That the recommendations from the overview and scrutiny committee of 28 January 2013 be noted and that the cabinet member for finance, resources and community safety respond to the committee.
- 15. That the proposals in the report for a balanced budget based on a nil council tax increase for 2013/14 for recommendation to council assembly on 27 February 2013 be agreed. Budget schedules are set out in Appendices A-E of the report.
- 16. That given current uncertainties arising from a range of welfare reforms, officers be requested to remove the proposed £55,000 saving for advice services, as detailed in Appendix D of the report, with the cost to be met from council balances or from compensating savings agreed by the strategic director of finance and corporate services.

NOTE: In accordance with overview and scrutiny procedure rule 22.1(a) (budget and policy framework) these decisions are not subject to call-in.

9. REPORT FROM THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE: POLICY AND RESOURCES 2013/14 TO 2015/16

This item had not been circulated five clear days in advance of the meeting. The chair agreed to accept the item as urgent as the overview and scrutiny committee's recommendations needed to be considered in conjunction with cabinet agenda item 8, Policy and Resources 2013/14 to 2015/16.

The recommendations of the overview and scrutiny committee were considered in conjunction with the previous item.

10. REVENUE MONITORING REPORT QUARTER 3, 2012/13 INCLUDING TREASURY MANAGEMENT

- 1. That the following be noted:
 - the general fund outturn forecast for 2012/13 and the resultant forecast net movement in reserves
 - the housing revenue account's (HRA) forecast outturn for 2012/13 and resulting forecast movement in reserves
 - the treasury management activity for the third quarter of 2012/13.
- 2. That the initial revenue savings arising from the council's purchase of 160 Tooley

Street be noted.

- 3. That the forecast council tax and business rates collection fund balance as at 31 March 2013 be noted.
- 4. That the general fund budget movements during quarter 3 that exceed £250,000, as shown in Appendix A, be approved.
- 5. That the strategic director of finance and corporate services set aside the 2012/13 savings arising from the Tooley Street acquisition for additional investment in community safety schemes in the borough.

11. QUARTERLY CAPITAL MONITORING REPORT QUARTER 3

RESOLVED:

- 1. That the general fund capital programme 2012/13–2021/22 as at quarter 3 2012/13 as detailed in Appendices A and D of the report be noted.
- 2. That the housing investment programme 2012/13–2021/22 at quarter 3 2012/13 as detailed in Appendix B of the report be noted.
- 3. That the virements and funded variations for quarter 3 2012/13 as detailed in Appendix C of the report be agreed.

12. AUTHORISATION OF DEBT WRITE-OFFS OVER £50,000 FOR NATIONAL NON DOMESTIC RATES - REVENUES AND BENEFITS SERVICE

RESOLVED:

That the write off of the debt of £98,031.81 for one debt (which includes seven accounts billed to the same ratepayer) which is irrecoverable be approved.

13. LEATHERMARKET JOINT MANAGEMENT BOARD - SELF FINANCING OF HOUSING REVENUE ACCOUNT

- 1. That the progress made towards the innovative and ground breaking proposal to establish the first 'self financing' tenant management organisation (TMO) in the country thereby increasing significantly the levels of empowerment of council residents in this area be noted.
- 2. That the implementation of this proposal from April 2013 be agreed.
- 3. That the the council enter into a new modular management agreement (MMA) with Leathermarket joint management board (JMB) that includes additional terms to enable the payment of an allowance to the JMB to equate to the sums levied by way

of rent, service charge and garage rent, and robust monitoring mechanisms to ensure that public funds are protected be agreed.

14. PROGRESS REPORT ON ABBEYFIELD ESTATE REGENERATION SCHEME AND UPDATE ON DELIVERY OF FOUR SQUARES AND HAWKSTONE ESTATE

RESOLVED:

That for Abbeyfield Estate:

- 1. The progress made on achieving vacant possession of Maydew House residents be noted.
- 2. That the outcome of the option-to-return expression of interest be noted.
- 3. That the procurement plan and milestones outlined in paragraph 19 of the report be noted.
- 4. That the proposed programme for the identification of voids for sale outlined in paragraph 20 of the report be noted.
- 5. That the preparations and progress towards the refurbishment of Maydew House, Damory House and Thaxted Court be noted.
- 6. That the issuing of Ground 10 notices as part of the notice of seeking possession process as outlined in paragraph 15 of the report be noted.
- 7. That it be noted that the council is taking active steps to secure the making of a compulsory purchase order.

and in addition:

8. That the update on the progress of the Hawkstone and Four Squares estates be noted.

15. COMMUNITY INFRASTRUCTURE LEVY (CIL) DRAFT CHARGING SCHEDULE

- 1. That it be agreed to publish and invite representations on the community infrastructure levy (CIL) draft charging schedule (Appendix A of the report) and the draft "Regulation 123 List" (Appendix B). The Bakerloo Line extension (not including land) to be added to the CIL Regulation 123 list (Appendix B).
- 2. That the draft infrastructure delivery plan (Appendix C of the report), the equalities analysis (Appendix D), the consultation plan (Appendix E) and consultation report (Appendix F) be noted.
- 3. That the submission of the community infrastructure levy (CIL) draft charging

schedule to the Planning Inspectorate for an examination-in-public be approved, provided no substantive changes are necessary following consultation.

4. That the approval of any minor amendments resulting from consultation on the community infrastructure levy (CIL) draft charging schedule and the draft "Regulation 123 List" be delegated to the director of planning, in consultation with the cabinet member for regeneration and corporate strategy.

16. ESTABLISHMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH LEADERSHIP AND COMMISSIONING IN SOUTHWARK COUNCIL

RESOLVED:

- 1. That it be noted that the local authority will take on public health accountabilities and responsibilities from April 2013.
- 2. That the appointment on 3 September 2012 of a joint director of public health for Southwark and Lambeth, in line with the Southwark cabinet's decision of 17 July 2012, be noted.
- 3. That the NHS consultation with public health staff on the operating model for a shared specialist team for Southwark and Lambeth be noted.
- 4. That the approach to commissioning sexual health services (paragraphs 43 to 52 of the report), alcohol and substance misuse treatment services (paragraphs 53 to 59), children's commissioning (paragraphs 60 to 63) and health promotion and prevention (paragraphs 64 to 65) be agreed.
- 5. That authority for the final sign-off on the NHS contract transfer scheme and staff transfer scheme be delegated to the strategic director of children's and adults' services and the strategic director of finance and corporate services.
- 6. That authority be delegated to the strategic director of children's and adults' services after consultation with the strategic director of finance and corporate services on:
 - i. the agreement with the local clinical commissioning group referred to in paragraph 71 of the report
 - ii. the tri-borough agreement referred to in paragraph 70 of the report
 - iii. the shared service agreement referred to in paragraph 69 of the report and any other ancillary agreements.

17. ESTABLISHING SOUTHWARK'S HEALTH AND WELLBEING BOARD AS A COMMITTEE OF THE COUNCIL

RESOLVED:

1. That council assembly be recommended to establish Southwark's health and wellbeing board as a committee of the council from 1 April 2013 and to agree the membership of the board as set out in paragraph 25 of the report.

- 2. That it be noted that the terms of reference and procedural rules for the board will be agreed at council assembly following the publication of secondary legislation.
- 3. That it be agreed that the joint health and wellbeing strategy will be proposed by the health and wellbeing board for approval by cabinet and the NHS clinical commissioning group governing body.

NOTE: This decision is to be treated as a recommendation to council assembly. Therefore these decisions are not subject to call-in.

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

It was moved, seconded and

RESOLVED:

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in category 3 of paragraph 10.4 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Southwark Constitution.

The following is a summary of the closed part of the meeting.

18. MINUTES

RESOLVED:

That the closed minutes of the meeting held on 29 January 2013 be approved as a correct record and signed by the chair.

The meeting ended at 5.55pm.

CHAIR:

DATED:

DEADLINE FOR NOTIFICATION OF CALL-IN UNDER SECTION 21 OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PROCEDURE RULES IS MIDNIGHT, WEDNESDAY 20 FEBRUARY 2013.

THE ABOVE DECISIONS WILL NOT BE IMPLEMENTABLE UNTIL AFTER THAT DATE. SHOULD A DECISION OF THE CABINET BE CALLED-IN FOR SCRUTINY, THEN THE RELEVANT DECISION WILL BE HELD IN ABEYANCE PENDING THE OUTCOME OF SCRUTINY CONSIDERATION.

9